1950

Lafe Morley v. Earl Willden, T. A. Claridge and Alden Willden : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

In the early part of the year 1947, the plaintiff, Lafe Morley had a conversation with defendant, Earl Willden, at Delta, Utah, where both lived. They talked about some “kidney quartz” ore which Willden had found about twelve years previously in the Topaz district, northwest of Drum Mountain in Juab County, Utah. During the course of the conversation, the two of them arranged to go out and search for the source of that ore and at Morley’s suggestion, defendant T. A.

Claridge, also of Delta, was to be taken with them to make the search (Tr. 4, 5).

After two attempts the three of them on about May 19, 1947 (Tr. 7), got together and went out into the district referred to. Willden could not locate the "kidney quartz" ore, but they did find some other ore, apparently fluorspar, and where it was found they located a mining claim which they named the "Dell" because of its location to the west of Dell Valley. They recorded this claim and another, Dell #1, in their three names, in the office of the Juab County Recorder on May 27, 1947 (Tr. 9).

Thereafter, during the same year, the three of them, Lafe Morley, Earl Willden and T. A. Claridge, made four or five prospecting trips to the said district which is about fifty miles northwest of Delta. Morley agreed to stand his portion of the expenses and Claridge went out on the claims and prospected (Tr. 71, 320).

In the meantime, they had obtained an assay of the ore which they found on their first trip and learned that it was fluorspar ore of good quality (Tr. 10).

During the prospecting trips and later on in the year 1947 and early in 1948, the three of them formed a partnership, which they called the Dell Mining Company (Tr. 14) and made plans to go out and open up the ground and find the vein from which their fluorspar sample had come (Tr. 11) and wherever it looked reasonable, to get out on these hills and develop new claims (Tr. 74, 137, 151). Morley made arrangements

with defendant Al Willden, Earl's brother, to work in Morley's place in opening up the claim and the partners arranged to take an air compressor out onto the claim to assist in the development work (Tr. 11, 182). Morley donated a ton and a half army truck (Tr. 12) to provide transportation for men and materials onto the claim. Earl Willden and Claridge agreed to put in their labor and Lafe Morley contracted with Al Willden to perform Morley's share of the work (Tr. 75). Al Willden was told to keep track of the time he worked and to report to Morley at the end of each week. Claridge undertook to act as manager for the group (Tr. 148) and to take care to a great extent of their clerical work and other work not actual mining labor, such as establishing boundary lines of the claims, making notices and recording the claims.

The foregoing arrangements were made in March of 1948. Additional claims were located and recorded as follows:

Locators		Dated	Recorded
T. A. Claridge) Lafe Morley) Earl Willden)	Dell #2	Mar. 8, 1948	Apr. 13, 1948
T. A. Claridge) Lafe Morley) Earl Willden)	Dell #3	Mar. 23, 1948	Apr. 13, 1948
T. A. Claridge) Lafe Morley) Earl Willden)	Dell #4	Mar. 23, 1948	Apr. 13, 1948
T. A. Claridge) Lafe Morley) Earl Willden) Al Willden)	Dell #5	April 6, 1948	Apr. 13, 1948

T. A. Claridge)
 Lafe Morley) Red Hill May 1, 1948 May 24, 1948
 Earl Willden)

T. A. Claridge)
 Lafe Morley) Lucky Day May 10, 1948 June 8, 1948
 Earl Willden)
 Al Willden)

T. A. Claridge)
 Lafe Morley) Dell #5 May 10, 1948 June 8, 1948
 Earl Willden) (amended)
 Al Willden)

In each claim the names of the three partners were shown as locators. In Dell #5 and Lucky Day, Al Willden was shown as locator. He found some ore on those locations after working hours and the partners permitted him to be named as a locator (Tr. 258).

The two Willdens continued on at the development work on the Dell claims. Morley's payments to Al Willden for his work were made once a week at intervals up to June 5, 1948. About once a month, they met at Claridge's home and equaled up the other expenses. Morley would pay one third of the amount incurred for supplies. In the meantime additional claims as follows were located and recorded:

Claim	Dated	Recorded
Big Boy	May 25, 1948	June 23, 1948
Dell #3 amended	June 5, 1948	June 8, 1948
Hill Top	June 5, 1948	June 8, 1948
Summit	June 17, 1948	June 29, 1948

In each claim the names of the three partners appeared as locators. In Big Boy, Hill Top, and Summit,

Al Willden's name also appeared as a locator. Claridge had prepared the notices and had put Al Willden's name therein as a locator without notifying Lafe Morley and had recorded them in that form.

Likewise, without knowledge of or participation by Morley, Claridge and the two Willdens on Sunday, May 9, 1948, had prospected for and discovered other claims listed below:

Claim	Dated	Recorded
Lost Sheep #1	May 10, 1948	May 24, 1948
Lost Sheep #2	May 10, 1948	May 24, 1948
Blow Out	May 10, 1948	May 24, 1948

In the claims recorded of the two "Lost Sheep" claims, the two Willdens were shown as locators and in the "Blow Out" claim, T. A. Claridge and his son, Rex Claridge were shown as locators.

There was no notice given to Morley by the Willdens or Claridge of any termination or change in their partnership arrangements. Nor was there any intimation of any change in the relationship until May 27, 1948. On that date the three defendants, Earl Willden, Al Willden and T. A. Claridge were together following their midday meal, in the miners cabin located near the workings on the Dell Claim. Plaintiff Morley came to the cabin with Les Price who was associated with Morley and others in the Ward Leasing Company. Claridge seemed displeased at the presence of Price and announced to Morley, "There is going to be a lot of fellows coming in, so from this date anyone wishing any

more claims is going to be responsible individually.” (Tr. 27.) Morley was embarrassed by the reception given him by Claridge and puzzled by his declaration, but he made no reply (Tr. 27).

Two days later in Delta, Claridge met Morley on the street and invited him to the Claridge home because—“There is a few things we want to talk over.” After their talk, they parted with a handshake and “swore to one another that we would stick together in this mining deal.” (Tr. 58.) Morley felt that the “misunderstanding was pretty well cleared up.” (Tr. 58, 118.)

Shortly after the conversation at the cabin on May 27th, Claridge informed Morley that he and the Willdens “each had a couple of claims down around the point that they had located.” Claridge followed up this announcement with the statement, “I don’t think that they amount to much.” Morley was uncertain as to the legal effect of that statement respecting his interest in the claims “down around the point.” As he stated it, “I didn’t know exactly where I stood on it.” (Tr. 59.)

The question remained in Morley’s mind and on about September 18, 1948, he went into the County Recorder’s Office at Nephi, Utah, and examined the record of mining claims and found that on May 24, 1948, Claridge had recorded the two Lost Sheep claims and the Blow Out claim as listed above which they had located on May 10, 1948, and that his name had been omitted as a locator (Tr. 54). Morley tried to get an explana-

tion from Claridge and to discuss the situation with him. Claridge then told Morley that the only place he would "discuss this thing" with him would be "in court." (Tr. 55.)

The Willdens had stopped working on the Dell claims during the latter part of June, 1948 and had commenced developing the Lost Sheep claims which were also located near the Dell Valley, the shortest distance between one of the Dell group of claims and one of the Lost Sheep group being about eight hundred feet, or less than a quarter of a mile (Tr. 22). The flourspar ore produced from the Lost Sheep claim was abundant and of high quality. They shipped one car to Geneva Steel on a contract which Morley had obtained with that company in his own name, but for the Dell Mining Company (Tr. 112). The check from Geneva Steel came back to Morley in his name. At the request of Earl Willden, Morley turned the check over to him, feeling that there would be an accounting of the money (Tr. 116), and that it didn't make any difference so long as the ore was being shipped (Tr. 118). The Willdens centered their efforts and energies on the Lost Sheep claims. Morley and Claridge had purchased from Earl Willden his one third interest in the Dell group of claims and they centered their interest there. On June 29 Morley and Claridge joined in a letter to Geneva Steel in which they wrote regarding shipment of ore (Tr. 126). In that letter, they referred to the relationship between Claridge, Earl Willden and Morley as a partnership "developing a property" which they named the "Dell Mining Company." (Def's. Ex. 7.)

On September 18, 1948 as related above, Morley learned that the Lost Sheep claims and the Blow Out claims had been located by his two partners and his own hired man (Al Willden) on May 10, 1948, at a time when there had been no intimation of any change in their relationship, when Morley was still paying one third of the expense of the operation, when he was paying Al Willden for working out Morley's share of the labor, when they still had Morley's truck on the job for hauling the men between Delta and the mine and for trucking at the mine; when they had Morley's other equipment in use at the mine (Tr. 45) and when the Dell Mining Company, organized without formality under the custom of miners, was operating fully in accordance with the plan and intent of the partners.

Morley then promptly, September 24, 1948, asked for an explanation from his partners and made an effort to discuss with them the situation which seemed to him inconsistent with their original relationship and operations. He was then told that they would discuss this thing with him in court (Tr. 55).

The Willdens had continued their operations of the Lost Sheep claims which had produced valuable ore in large quantities (Tr. 196). Claridge had done some development on the Blow Out Claim. Morley started this action in December, 1948 for an accounting by his partners and the trial was held in July, 1949. The trial court denied the relief sought by plaintiff and, being an equity action, this appeal seeks a review by the Supreme

Court of both the facts and the law and requests a reversal of the decision of the trial court which favored the position of the defendants and respondents.

STATEMENT OF POINTS

1. The trial court erred in finding in paragraph 16 of the Findings,

“That there was no agreement between the plaintiff and Al Willden that Al Willden should prospect with or for, or locate claims for the plaintiff or that plaintiff should be named as a locator in any claim which he, Al Willden, might locate.”

in that the evidence is insufficient to support such finding.

2. The trial court erred in finding in paragraph 17 of the Findings,

“ . . . that neither Claridge nor the Willdens started work on the Lost Sheep Group, until after Earl Willden arranged with plaintiff to cease work on the Dell Group in the early part of June.”

in that the evidence is insufficient to support such finding.

3. The trial court erred in finding in paragraph 18 of the Findings,

“That there was no express agreement or definite arrangement at any time, either oral or written, between the plaintiff and Earl Willden

or T. A. Claridge relative to the prospecting or location or ownership of mining claims other than the Dell or Dell #1 claims, although Claridge and Earl Willden recognized an obligation to name plaintiff as a co-locator with them on claims adjoining the Dell and Dell #1.”

in that the evidence is insufficient to support such finding.

4. The trial court erred in finding in paragraph 19 of the Findings,

“That plaintiff knew at least as early as the forepart of June, 1948 that Claridge and the Willdens had located two or more claims northerly from the Dell Group and that he had not been named or included as a locator on such claims.”

in that the evidence is insufficient to support such finding.

5. The trial court erred in the first Conclusion of Law in concluding that

“The plaintiff, Morley and the Defendants, Claridge and Earl Willden, should be considered joint venturers or partners in equal shares in the development work done prior to about June 15, 1948 on the Dell Group of claims.”

This is assigned as error for the reason that from the facts, the court should have concluded that the three persons named should be regarded as partners in all prospecting and development work regardless of where done at least until May 27, 1948.

6. The trial court erred in the first Conclusion of Law, quoted next above, in that the court thereby goes outside of the pleadings and the trial of the case to make its decision and judgment.

7. The court erred in the second Conclusion of Law in concluding,

“That no partnership arrangement was effected between the plaintiff and the defendants, or either of them, covering the prospecting for or location of mining claims other than those embraced within the Dell Group.”

This is assigned as error for the reason that from the facts, it clearly appears that there was a partnership effected for the location and development of mining claims without limitation as to the place where such claims should be found; that as to defendant Claridge and his interest in the Blow Out Claim and the other claims of the Lost Sheep group, irrespective of the status of the other defendants, this showing of the evidence is conclusive; and that while such partnership was in full effect and operating, the Lost Sheep group of claims were discovered and located.

8. The trial court erred in concluding in Conclusion No. 3,

“That there was no legal or equitable obligation on the part of either Claridge, Earl Willden or Al Willden to include the plaintiff's name as a co-locator or co-owner with them in any of the mining claims referred to as the Lost Sheep group or in the Eagle Rock claim.”

This appellant assigns as error for the reasons set forth in point No. 7 hereof and for the further reason that the facts place the defendant Earl Willden in the same partnership relationship with plaintiff as they place defendant Claridge and for the further reason as to defendant Al Willden that the facts show him to be in the employ of plaintiff Morley, working for him as a hired man at the time when the Lost Sheep group of claims were discovered and located.

9. The trial court erred in concluding in Conclusion No. 4 that,

“the plaintiff has no right, title, equity or interest in any of the claims referred to as the Lost Sheep group or in the Eagle Rock Claim, and is not entitled to any accounting for ores taken from any of said claims.”

This plaintiff assigns as error for the reasons set forth in points No. 7 and 8.

10. The trial court erred in rendering judgment that,

“the plaintiff herein has not, nor has any person or persons claiming under him, any estate, right, title, equity, interest, claim or demand of any nature or description in or to the following described unpatented lode mining claims, or any part thereof, situated in an unknown mining district in Juab County, State of Utah, and located about 52 miles northwesterly from the city of Delta in Millard County, Utah, and lying about one or two miles northerly and westerly from a small valley known as ‘The Dell’ or ‘Dell Valley’, to-wit:

Name of Claim	Names on Notices	Date on Notices	Date of Recording
Lost Sheep #1	Earl Willden Al Willden	10 May 1948	24 May 1948
Lost Sheep #2	Earl Willden Al Willden	10 May 1948	24 May 1948
Blow Out	T. A. Claridge	10 May 1948	24 May 1948
Lost Sheep #3	Earl Willden	24 May 1948	2 June 1948
Low Boy	Earl Willden Al Willden Tass Claridge	21 June 1948	22 June 1948
Low Boy #1	Earl Willden Al Willden T. A. Claridge	5 Aug. 1948	14 Sept. 1948
Eagle Rock	T. A. Claridge Rex Claridge Earl Willden Al Willden	15 Aug. 1948	14 Sept. 1948
Low Boy #2	T. A. Claridge Al Willden Earl Willden	21 Sept. 1948	1 Oct. 1948
Low Boy #3	Al Willden Earl Willden T. A. Claridge	21 Sept. 1948	1 Oct. 1948
Canyon	Earl Willden Al Willden T. A. Claridge	21 Sept. 1948	1 Oct. 1948

Appellant contends that the court erred in so rendering judgment for the reason that such judgment is not supported by the facts in the case and is contrary to law.

11. The trial court erred in rendering judgment that,

“The plaintiff is not entitled to any accounting from the said defendants or any of them for ores taken from any of said claims.”

“The plaintiff take nothing by his complaint and that the defendants have judgment against the said plaintiff “no cause of action.”

“The defendants have judgment against the said plaintiff for their costs in this cause incurred and hereby taxed at \$......”

This assignment is made for the reason that such judgment is not supported by the facts in the case and is contrary to law.

ARGUMENT

POINT No. 1

The trial court erred in finding in paragraph 16 of the Findings,

“That there was no agreement between the plaintiff and Al Willden that Al Willden should prospect with or for, or locate claims for the plaintiff or that plaintiff should be named as a locator in any claim which he, Al Willden, might locate.”

in that the evidence is insufficient to support such finding.

The finding that there was no agreement between the plaintiff and Al Willden that Al Willden should prospect with or for, or locate claims for the plaintiff is discredited by the only evidence in the entire record

concerning the intent of the agreement between plaintiff Morley and defendant Al Willden with respect to prospecting discoveries made by Al Willden. He testified (Tr. 257) referring to an occurrence after March of 1948,

Q. "Later on, Mr. Willden, there were some subsequent locations in this Dell group which is embraced in that red border in which four of you appear as locators?"

A. Yes sir.

Q. Did you have any conversation with Mr. Morley or Claridge or any of the others concerning being located in on these claims?

A. No sir.

Q. Do you know how you came to be located in these claims?

A. Well, I found some of the ore up there on my own after working hours, they just located me in."

The record shows that the first time Al received similar extra consideration for his labor was on April 6, 1948 when "Dell No. 5" was located. He was named as a locator because they had "found some ore coming up there." (Tr. 257.)

Some of the partners were with Al Willden when "Dell No. 5" was located and the time of day is not known. Those facts might dilute his claim to be owner of what he found. When "Lucky Day" was found, the circumstances were all in his favor. He found it. He was on his own. It was after working hours.

His testimony shows that he did not even talk to the partners about being located in on the find. Clearly only as a reward, the partners “—just located (him) in.”

Had his agreement with Morley permitted him to do so he would have laid some claim to the “Lucky Day.” When he was working out there in the hills he was working for Morley and all he had to do was report the hours and get his pay.

On this same day, the Lucky Day claim, the Lost Sheep claims and the Blow Out claim were located. Why did they not follow the same rule. When Al discovered “Lucky Day” Morley was not present. Yet it was located in the name of the partnership with Al’s name added as a reward for his industry. He was *on his own* and *it was after working hours*. Was the situation any different when they discovered the Lost Sheep, Lost Sheep #1 and Blow Out? Morley was not present, and it was after working hours, that is it was on Sunday, but those facts did not cut Morley out of the Lucky Day claim. What then did defendants advance as justification for upsetting their partnership understanding? The Lost Sheep group was a few hundred feet away from the Dell group. That is the reason they assigned. The real reason is that in the Lost Sheep group, Earl Willden, Al Willden and T. A. Claridge, these defendants, found a fortune. Morley was not present so they decided to cut him out. The trial court found that he, Al Willden, was under no obligation to Morley when he prospected and in that we think there is error.

The situation has almost a parallel in an early Nevada case—Costello vs. Scott, 93 Pac. 1.

This was an action for an accounting by Thomas J. Costello and another against Murry Scott and others. Scott was a practical miner. Costello was a stock broker. Scott was in the Fairplay Mining District. Costello was at Tonopah. Scott located certain claims at Fairplay then joined up with two other prospectors Mays and Savage. They went on a prospecting trip and located valuable mines at Wonder, twenty miles distant from Fairplay. Defendants contended that there was no partnership, only a “grub-stake” agreement; that the Costello-Scott arrangement was terminated when Scott teamed up with the other prospectors; that at most the Costello-Scott arrangement concerned only claims at Fairplay and not at Wonder, twenty miles away.

Respecting the first point the court said,

“We frequently encounter cases where the object of the venture is not only to search for and discover mines, but also to work and develop them, and conduct a general mining business. This is something more than a grub-stake contract. Such an agreement constitutes a partnership.” Lindley on Mines, (2nd Ed.), Vol 2, Section 858, p. 1565 et seq.

Respecting the scope of their operations the court said:

“It is very earnestly contended by counsel for appellant that the contract entered into between Scott and the plaintiffs had reference only to the

Fairplay District, — Although the earlier correspondence between the parties referred only to this district, there is no specific declaration that their operations are to be confined to that district. It is common knowledge that where parties enter into grub-stake agreements, or general partnerships for mining purposes, they care very little about the place where the mines are found.”

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