1950

## Lafe Morley v. Earl Willden, T. A. Claridge and Alden Willden : Brief of Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

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

## ARGUMENT

### Plaintiff's Point No. 1

The Trial Court did not err in its Finding No. 16 to the effect there was no agreement between the plaintiff and Al Willden that Al Willden should prospect with or for or locate claims for the plaintiff.

Plaintiff bases his entire argument on the fact that Al Willden was located in as one of the locators on the Lucky Day claim, which bears the location date of May 10th, 1948, the same date given as the location date on the Lost Sheep claims Nos. 1 and 2, and Blow Out claim. It is asserted on Page 16 of Appellant's brief that "had his agreement with Morley permitted him to do so, he would have laid some claim to the Lucky Day, and therefore Al Willden was under an obligation to make Morley

a co-locator in the Lost Sheep and Blow Out group of claims." It is also asserted that the situation was no different concerning the Lost Sheep and Blow Out claims than it was concerning the Lucky Day claim.

Appellant overlooks or disregards Finding No. 15 (Record 29), the correctness of which is unchallenged by him, wherein the court finds that Lucky Day, along with other claims in the Dell or south group which were located after, or notices of location of which were recorded after May 27th, 1948, (Lucky Day claim was recorded June 8th, 1948, Pltf's. Ex. 10), were originally discovered prior to such date, and on which the locations were not perfected or on which the locations were subsequently amended; that all of these claims, including Lucky Day, are contiguous to the other claims making up the Dell group, ~~to wit~~, and Claridge believed the veins or contacts on the Dell and Dell No. 1 would extend into all of these contiguous claims, and for that reason Claridge and Earl Willden felt and recognized an obligation to include the plaintiff Morley as a co-locator therein.

Particularly concerning the Lucky Day claim, the location notice of which is dated May 10th, 1948, while the record is not as clear as it might be, yet it is reasonably clear that the actual location of this claim was prior to May 10th, and the work of completing or perfecting the location was made on May 10th as a relocation or amended location. This same thing was true of one or

two of the other claims as found by the Court in its Finding No. 15. When Earl Willden was testifying on cross-examination the following appears (Tr. 211):

Q. And also referring to notice of location contained within this same exhibit (Pltf's Ex. 10), referring to Lucky Day, do you know if he (Claridge) located Lucky Day on he 10th of May?

A. I think that he re-located it or something there on that day.

Q. Was there any re-location of Lucky Day?

A. Well, it seemed that he had made a mistake in the length of it or something. I believe that is the one that he had made a mistake in the length, a couple of hundred feet.

And when Claridge was testifying on cross-examination concerning the locators of claims, he was asked (Tr. 379):

Q. What location notices did you and Earl Willden appear on in May, 1948?

A. Lucky Day on the amended.

Appellant also overlooks the import of Findings Nos. 11 and 12 (Record 28) to the effect that the most southerly point of any of the Lost Sheep claims located prior to May 28th, 1948, is approximately 3600 feet distant from the most northerly point on any of the Dell claims located prior to that time; that the ore veins or contacts exposed on the Dell claims located prior to May

28th, 1948; are not the same veins or contacts exposed on the Lost Sheep claims—or in effect that the two groups of claims are separate and distinct from each other.

The court's Finding No. 16 is predicated, among other things, on the testimony of Al Willden that he had found some ore on some of these Dell group of claims, after working hours and they located him in; that he was never asked or requested by Morley or Claridge or Earl Willden to include them in on any locations which he might make for himself; that it was never discussed with Morley (Tr. 257-8-9); and on the testimony of Claridge that when Morley, he, and the Willdens were speaking of locating Al Willden in on several of the Dell group no one mentioned anything about claims other than those comprising the Dell group (Tr. 325); that he never instructed either Al or Earl Willden to go out and prospect for other or new claims, but did tell them it would be well to look around and see if they could find some new deposits of ore on the Dell claims; that he never instructed the Willdens to prospect other than on the Dell claims; that he never discussed with Morley, or Morley with him the fact that they were to prospect for claims or hunt ore other than on the contact on the Dell claims; that Morley was never advised or told that if the Willdens or Claridge prospected for ground away from the Dell group and the mining contact on it, it would be for his benefit and he should be a co-locator; that Morley never asked to be lo-

cated in on any other than the Dell group (Tr. 327-328); that he never advised Al Willden that he could not, while working on the Dell claims, prospect for and locate other claims for himself and that there was never any discussion of such a matter (Tr. 329).

The Court found (Finding No. 20, Record 31), and there is ample proof to sustain such finding as we shall discuss later, that as early as the fore part of June, 1948, that Claridge and the Willdens had located two or more claims northerly from the Dell group and that he had not been named or included as a locator on such claims. The Court also found in Findings Nos. 20 and 21, which are unchallenged by the appellant, that in the month of June, 1948, Morley permitted Earl Willden to ship in Morley's name the first car of ore mined from the Lost Sheep claims; that he received a check from Geneva Steel Company in the sum of about \$1,500.00 in payment for this ore and delivered the check to Willden without protest and without claim to any portion thereof; that he made no inquiry concerning any claimed interest he would have in the proceeds, asserted no rights to any interest in the claims and evinced no interest whatever in these claims.

The Court found (Finding No. 21, Record 32), and which finding is unchallenged by appellant that Morley made no demand upon Claridge or Willdens for any share or interest in any of the claims in the Lost Sheep group or for any accounting of proceeds from shipments made

from said claims prior to the latter part of August or September, 1948. It will be remembered that by then the Willdens had shipped a number of cars of ore (Tr. 79; 483-484).

No doubt the Court made Finding No. 16, (having observed the demeanor of the plaintiff and the defendants on the stand, their apparent candor or lack of it, their reluctance or lack of it in testifying), by taking into consideration the fact that Morley himself, by his own actions, disclaimed any interest in the new claims, until the claims were developed to a point where it was obvious they were valuable. In our statement of facts we set forth transcript pages showing where such facts could be found and there is no point in restating the facts in detail or in a further reference to the transcript pages, but we will mention very briefly some of the facts we have in mind.

During the early part of June, 1948, Earl Willden advised Morley that he was going to quit work on the Dell claims and go to work on the Lost Sheep claims, and about the same time Claridge advised Morley that the Willdens had located the Lost Sheep claims. Morley took it for granted when in June he was advised about the Lost Sheep and Blow Out locations that he was not made a co-locator. He made no claim then to any interest in the claims, and made on objection to not having been located in, and it was several months after the Willdens had made a number of shipments before he made his claim.

Morley knew that the Willdens were working on the Lost Sheep claims and that the Willdens had paid for the building of a road to the claims and were furnishing all of the machinery, tools and paying all expenses of operations, but Morley made no offer to contribute anything, nor made any inquiries concerning the venture until many shipments had been made and the value of the property demonstrated; Morley had the contract with the Geneva Steel Company and asked Earl Willden to ship the first car under the Morley contract to protect it. When the proceeds of \$1,500.00 was returned to Morley he turned the money over to Earl Willden, making no claim to any of the proceeds, making no inquiry about expenses of getting out the car or of the operations; that after the first shipment the Willdens procured their own contract from Geneva Steel and thereafter shipped in their own names, all without any objection from Morley, even though his own contract was being cancelled by Geneva Steel because of non-shipments.

On June 28th, in reply to the Geneva Steel Company's inquiry about ore shipments he sent a letter to Geneva Steel Company saying that Claridge, Earl Willden and he were working as partners developing a property called Dell Mining Company and that Willden sold his interest "to finance work on one claim for he and his brother."

That he knew Earl Willden was selling his interest



in the Dell claims for \$1,500.00, for the purpose of raising money to work the Lost Sheep claims. Morley made no offer to contribute anything toward the development of the Lost Sheep, although he knew that Willden was making a sacrifice in disposing of his interest in the Dell claims, and Claridge and Morley each bought one-half of Earl Willden's interest. The interest of Earl Willden in the Dell claims was valuable, and known by Morley to be valuable, because within three weeks after the sale and before much, if any, work was done to develop them further, Claridge sold his interest, then a one-half interest, in the Dell claims, to the Ward Leasing Company of which Morley was a partner, for \$25,000.00. In other words, Willden sold a one-third interest for \$1,500.00 and a one-half interest sold immediately thereafter for \$25,000.00.

Morley knew that if the Willdens had more financing and more equipment they could have produced ore from the Lost Sheep claims considerably faster than they did, and there was additional machinery on the Dell claims not then in use, but Morley made no offer or suggestion to assist with the financing or in any other way. When Morley was on the Lost Sheep property a week or ten days after the Willdens commenced work thereon he made the statement to Earl Willden, "It is too bad we wasn't all in on this, you could have had the compressor in on this from the Dell claims," but he made no offer



to contribute anything and made no claim to any interest in the Lost Sheep claims.

No doubt the court concluded that if Morley, in good faith claimed an interest in the Lost Sheep group of mining claims when he was first on notice that he was not a co-locator early in June, he would have asserted such interest then and there; and he would have insisted on being recognized as an owner, taken an interest in the mining operations, insisted on a settlement as the cars were shipped, etc., etc. No doubt the court concluded from the facts that Morley did not claim any interest in any mining claims other than the Dell group until it was firmly established that they were valuable and until it was obvious to him beyond any question that they would become an asset and not a liability.

The fact of the matter is that if Morley did have it in mind that he could assert an interest, he was very careful to keep such assertion to himself in the first instance and for a number of months, so that if the claims proved without commercial value the Willdens and Claridge could not claim any right against him to contribution for the moneys and labor they had expended. If this be so, then he should not now complain because the court found from his own actions and conduct that there was no partnership arrangement as to the Lost Sheep group of claims.

It is very clear from the evidence that had the Lost

Sheep claims failed to materialize as claims of value, and had the Willdens lost their money, labor and efforts in trying to develop the claims, they could not have enforced any right to any contribution whatsoever from Morley. Until September, when the value of the claims was demonstrated, Morley had not done one single thing from which any court could have found that he was a partner in the Lost Sheep group of claims or was legally bound to share in any part of the losses, and it is quite obvious that he carefully kept himself in that enviable position.

It is asserted by plaintiff in his brief (page 16) that the real reason Morley was not made a co-locator in the Lost Sheep group was because they had found a fortune in the Lost Sheep group. The evidence is undisputed that the original two Lost Sheep and the Blow Out claims were located after one day's prospecting on Sunday, May 9th, and the only indications of ore was some float (Tr. 209-210; 214-224; 275 to 279; 259-260); the location notices were made out that night at Delta and posted two days later on the 11th. Anyone having the slightest experience in mining knows that in order to demonstrate the value of a prospect considerable exploration work must be done and generally considerable money must be spent. Likewise anyone having the slightest experience in mining knows only one out of hundreds of prospects ever makes a mine with commercial possibilities. How then can it be said that after a few hours prospecting on

the surface Claridge and the Willdens knew they had found a fortune? It is more likely that after Morley had spent money on the Dell claims and they had made no shipments after several months of exploration work, and after Earl Willden was not willing to go on with the work there because of his financial inability to do so, that Morley wanted no part of any additional claims, and that he expected none. At any rate his every action and his entire course of conduct from June until September indicated that very thing.

We find no case and appellant cites no case, and we know of no mining custom or law holding that a miner working for wages is required to turn over to his employer mining claims prospected for and located after working hours or on Sundays or holidays, or is required to locate his employer in on any such claims—particularly where the claims are not found and located on the contact or ore bodies of the employer's ground, or running from such ground. And this is particularly true also where the employer knows of such locations, makes no contribution toward the development, makes no claim thereto and evinces no interest therein until after the mine has been developed into a paying deal.

The one case cited by appellant, *Costello vs. Scott*, 93 Pac. 1, to sustain his position is so dissimilar in facts as to be easily distinguishable from the case at bar, as can be determined from even a casual reading thereof.

## Plaintiff's Point No. 2

The trial court did not err in its finding that neither Claridge nor the Willdens started work on the Lost Sheep group until after Earl Willden arranged with plaintiff to cease work on the Dell group in the early part of June.

It is asserted by plaintiff (pages 19 and 20 of his brief) that what Earl Willden said and did about changing work from the Dell claim to Lost Sheep claim is not inconsistent with continuing on with their original arrangement; that Morley's role was to supply finances, supplies and equipment.

Morley himself admits that Earl Willden made a sacrifice when selling his interest in the Dell claims "in order to finance the work on the Lost Sheep" (Tr. 131). (Also see Tr. 192-193). That is apparent from the fact that Willden sold his one-third interest for \$1,500.00 (Morley bought one-half of the one-third for \$750.00), and Ward Leasing Company of which Morley was a partner three weeks later with no additional work done purchased Claridge's half interest for \$25,000.00 (Tr. 129-130). The Willdens built the road from the cabin to the Lost Sheep entirely at their expense (Tr. 198-199). They used their own equipment and tools and paid all expenses of exploration work (Tr. 199; 89-90). How then, can it be contended that what Willden did about changing work from the Dell to the Lost Sheep is not inconsistent with continuing on with the original arrangement concerning

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